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NOTICE OF 12™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twelfth Annual General Meeting of the members of ARTISAN SPIRITS
PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No.: U15122MH2011PTC222280) will be held on MONDAY, MAY 29,
2023 at 2:30 P.M. (IST) at the registered office of the Company at 901, SOLARIS ONE, N.S. PHADKE
MARG, ANDHERI (E), MUMBALI - 400069 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. APPOINTMENT OF MR. MONIT DHAVALE WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Special
resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 179, 203 and Section 196 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8, 9 and 14 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions including the statutory modifications and/or re-
enactments thereof consent of the Member be and is here by accorded to appoint Mr. Monit Dhavale
(DIN: 09355541) as the Whole Time Director of the Company and change the category of appointment
from Non-Executive Director to Whole Time Director of the Company with immediate effect and shall
hold office for a period of 5 years without remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER any of the Directors or Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized
jointly or severally to sign and file requisite e-Form DIR 12 with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to execute such
documents or writing as may be necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. A PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING
THE PROXY MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder, a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding
in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting ri ghts,
A Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as a proxy and such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person
or Member.

3. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the company during office hours on all working days except Saturdays between 11.00
a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the 12™ Annual General Meeting.

4, Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified copy of Board Resolution/Power of
Attorney authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the General Meeting.

5. Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the meeting.

6. Shareholders seeking information regarding Accounts are requested to write to the Company in
advance so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

7. The route map for reaching at the venue with prominent landmark is provided at the end of the
Notice.

By Ordemm Board of Directors
For AFj\n pifits Private Limited

KinS vani

Company Secretary
Membership No. A50009

Registered Office:

901, Solaris One,

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E),
Mumbai - 400069

(CIN No.: U15122MH2011PTC222280)
Date: May 29, 2023

Place: Mumbai
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No.2

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Monit Dhavale (DIN: 09355541), as the Whole Time Director of the
Company with effect from May 29, 2023.

Pursuant to Sections 179, 203 and Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8,9 and 14 of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions
including the statutory modifications and/or re-enactments thereof, Mr. Monit Dhavale (DIN: 09355541)
be appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company and change the category of appointment from
Non-Executive Director to Whole Time Director of the Company with immediate effect and shall hold
office for a period of 5 years without remuneration.

The Board of Directors are confident that his knowledge and experience will add value to the Company
hence recommends this ordinary resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors except Mr. Monit Dhavale, in his capacity of being a Whole Time- Director, is in
any way concerned or interested in the resolution.

By Order g the Board of Directors
For Axrtis irits Private Limited
5 / /..-/ ePIRITS ‘0
K&%@ ani .: }
i\ N/

Company Secretary /S
Membership No. A50009 /..,-"

Registered Office:

901, Hubtown Solaris,

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E),
Mumbai - 400069

(CIN No.: U15122MH2011PTC222280)

Date: May 29, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of Director Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment at the Annual General Meeting

Name Mr. Monit Dhavale

Directors Identification Number 09355541

(DIN)

Age

Qualification He holds a bachelor’s degree of technology in home

science (hotel management and catering technology)
from Nagpur University and master of personnel
management from Savitribhai Phule Pune University
(earlier known as University of Pune). He has also
successfully completed a course in bar and beverage
management from the Educational Institute of the
American Hotel and Lodging Association and was
also awarded the WSET Level 1 Award in Wines
(QCF) by the Wines and Spirit Education Trust
Limited.

Experience He has previously worked with the Mahatma Gandhi
Vidyamandir’s Institute of Hotel Management and
Catering Technology in various capacities.

Terms & Conditions of Nil
appointment/re-appointment
Date of first Appointment on the October 11, 2021

Board of the Company
Shareholding in the Company -
Relation with other Directors, e
Manager or KMP
No. of Meetings of Board attended 6
during the year
Skills and capabilities required for the | He has also successfully completed a course in bar and
role and the manner in which meets beverage management from the Educational Institute
such requirements of the American Hotel and Lodging Association and
was also awarded the WSET Level 1 Award in Wines
(QCF) by the Wines and Spirit Education Trust
Limited. He is the Senior Vice President — Hospitality
Business of our Company. He has been working with
our Company since April 27, 2009 in various
capacities

Other Directorship, Membership/ -

Chairmanship of committees of other
Boards




ARTISAN SPIRITS PRIVATE LIMITED

Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,

The Directors present the 12" Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of Artisan Spirits Private
Limited for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

1. Financial Highlights

(INR in millions)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Gross Income 458.34 436.59
Profit Before Interest and Depreciation

(EBITDA) 18.04 65.84
Finance Charges 39.21 36.53
Provision for Depreciation 20.91 12.32
Net Profit Before Tax (42.08) 16.99
Provision for Tax - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 0.89 (0.83)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (41.19) 16.16
Balance of Loss brought forward (279.32) (295.48)
Balance not available for appropriation - -
Balance available for appropriation B -
Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Transfer to General Reserve - -
Deficit carried to Balance Sheet (320.51) (279.32)

Your directors are hopeful for the bright future of the Company in the years to come.

2. Review of Operations

The Company’s revenue grown by 4.98% from INR 436.59 million in FY22 to INR 458.34
million in FY23. However, EBIDTA has decline by 72.60% from INR 65.84 million in FY22
to INR 18.04 million in FY23 while the Profit Before Tax decreased by 347.68% from INR
16.99 million in FY22 to INR 42.08 million in FY23.

3. State of Affairs

Artisan Spirits Private Limited continues on its journey to consolidate its business under 3 key
verticals; Own Brands, Third party, Brand distribution business and hospitality.




0.

The Company acquired York Winery in July 2021. In the current year, we have asked on
making the brand portfolio under York better as well as establishing strong route to market.
These initiations should start delivering from next financial year.

The Company has strategically reduced its portfolio of third party brands which are not
profitable and continues to focus on brands like Le Grand which one art performing in the
market.

The hospitality business currently restricted in York Winery has shown good reaction from
visitors to the resorts as well as restaurant. We plan to increase the resort operations and induct
the entire Beyond operations under Artisan Spirits Private Limited from next year. All these
measures will lead to strong business and profitability in ASPL in the years to come.

S_hart.' Capital

Authorised Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 36,00,00,000/- (Thirty Six Crores)
comprising of 3,60,00,000 (Three Crore and Sixty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each.

The paid-uf) Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 35,35,00,000 (Thirty-Five Crores and Thirty
Five LLakhs) consisting of 3,53,50,000 (Three Crore Fifty Three Lakhs Fifty Thousand only)
Equity Shates Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

Dividend

The Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year 2022-23 to conserve profits
for future operations of the business.

Transfer of Reserves

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the reserves.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
During the year under review, following are the changes in Directors of the Company:

1. Mr. Bittu Varghese (DIN: 08708247) was appointed as Whole-time director and CFO of
- the Company with effect from 07 November, 2022.
2.. Mr. Bittu Varghese has tendered his resignation and shall be relieved for the duties of
Whole-time director and CFO with effect from closing hours of June 09, 2023.




8.

10.

11.

Director(s) Disclosure

Based on the declarations and confirmations received from the Directors, none of the Directors
of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.

Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors duly met 6 times during the financial year from 1% April 2022 to 31%
March 2022. The dates on which the meetings were held are April 06, 2022, May 18, 2022,
June 30, 2022, August 23, 2022, November 07, 2022 and February 08, 2023.

Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your
Company confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
company for the same period;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

(e) proper internal financial controls laid down by the Directors have been followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively.

(f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place
and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

Auditors

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
001076N/N500013), have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 6th
AGM held on 25th September, 2017 for a 2nd term of 5 years from conclusion of 11th AGM
till the conclusion of the 16th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027 subject to
ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM till the 16th AGM at such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the
amendments of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Companies Amendment Act,
2017 notified on 7th May, 2018, the requirement of ratification of their appointment by the
Members has been withdrawn.
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14,

15.

16.

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required
under Section 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
issued thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the
time being in force).

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of annual return in Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies
Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and
available on the Company’s website at https://sulavineyards.com/investor-relations.php.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate Companies:

The Company has no subsidiaries, associate companies or joint venture companies within the
meaning of section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

Material changes and commitments if any, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report;

Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the directors are not aware of any other
matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which have
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations and the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent years.

Risk management

Risk Management is considered as one of the important aspects of our corporate strategy. Risk
Management Policy has been adopted in pursuance to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
which promotes a proactive approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated
with the business. Periodic assessment of risks assists the Board of Directors in overseeing the
Company's risk management processes and controls.

During the year, no major risks were noticed, which may threaten the existence of the
Company.

Particulars of Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit (under Rule 2[c] of the Companies [Acceptance of
Deposits] Rules, 2014) within the meaning of Sections 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force).
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Loans, Guarantees and investments

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 disclosure on particulars relating to Loans,
Advances, Guarantees and Investments are provided as part of the financial statements.

Details of adequacy of internal financial controls

The Company has an effective internal control and risk mitigation environment which ensures
that the business and operations are managed efficiently and effectively, assets are
safeguarded, regulatory requirements are complied with and that all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

The Company remains committed to improve the effectiveness of internal control systems for
business processes regarding its operations, financial reporting and compliance with applicable

laws and regulations.

Explanation to Remarks: In the Statutory Auditors’ Report

The statutory audit report for the year 2022-23 does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark or disclaimer made by Statutory Auditors.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The provisions pertaining to maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not
applicable to the Company.

Contracts or arrangements with related parties

During the year under review, all related party transactions entered into by the Company, were
approved by the Board and were at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. The
Company did not have any contracts or arrangements with related parties in terms of Section
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Also, there were no material related party contracts entered
into by the Company during the year under review.

Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h)
of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for FY 2022-23 and hence does
not form part of this report.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts or
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Tribunals which would impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace

Your Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy and conducive environment for all
persons associated with us. Internal Complainant Committee/ Complainant Redressal
Committee has been constituted at various locations pursuant to the provisions of the
Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace which shall ensure complete
confidentiality and fair enquiry process of the complaints received. During the year under
review, no cases of sexual harassment were reported.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

A. Conservation of energy

Your Company understands the importance of conserving energy and all possible efforts
have been made to minimize its consumption.

B. Technology absorption, adoption and innovation

Company has made all possible efforts to absorb the technology to its fullest capacity. No
major adaptations and innovations carried out in the technology are being used.

C. Foreign earnings and Outgo

(in millions)

Foreign Exchange Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

(i) Earnings 9.03 23.28

(if) Outgo 82.19 178.33

Secretarial Standards

The Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India has been complied with by the Company during the financial year under
review.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members
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Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members
during the year under review. Your Directors take this opportunity to wish to place on record
their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the Company’s executives, staff
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mx// W

Chaitanya Rathi Bittu Varghese
Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 07705302 DIN: 08708247

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 02, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Artisan Spirits Private Limited ('the
Company'}), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statermnent of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity, with the Indian Accounting Standards{ind AS')
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2023, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changas in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI')
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Chatened Accombanls Walker Chandiok & Co LLP i registared with limited liskility with
arsiflcation number ASC-208%5 and has its registered office 2t 111,
(%ces In Bangslury, Chandigars, Chenng, Nchradun, Gurogram, Hyderatad, Eochi, Kolkala, Mum@el, Mew Delnl, folda and Puns Carmaught Clrews, Outer Clrele, Rew Ui, 110001, India



Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's Report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
infarmation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial staternents have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
respansibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erraor,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liguidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Crarfered Ascouwlants Walker Chandick & Ca LLP is registered with limited Fabiliy wilh
IdentHication number A0C-208%5 and has s regestered office st 41,
{fices in Aengalorn, Chandigaeh, Shenm, Detradun, Guogram, Hyderated, Koorl, Kokata, Mumha), Hew Detki, Koidz and Pune: Cremaught Oncus, Outer Orcle, Mew Lelhi, 200001, India
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

=« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern;

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit report, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of cur knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

Chintered Ascomlants wwizlker Chandiok B Co LLP is registered with Bmitad lakiliy wizh
Identification number AGC-20E5 and has ity registered allios a1 141,
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

b

Pt

In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;
c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act:

=

Pl

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fi  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure || wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1]
—

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as
at 31 March 2023,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
('the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 43(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding
Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parly (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries: and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023,

wi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accounja
Firm's Registratio

- 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership No., 108632

UDIN: 23109632BGXDZX3798

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Artisan Spirits Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of aur knowledge and belief, we report
that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a
period of 3 years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment
and right of use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
are held in the name of the Caompany.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of Use assets or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made
thereunder.

{iiy (&) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year, except for inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to the book records. In respect of
inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by the third parties.

(b) As disclosed in note 15.5 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a warking capital
limit in excess of ¥ 50 million by banks on the security of current assets. The guarterly statements, in
respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such statements
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company for the respective periods which were not
subjected to audit/review, except for the following:

S (Zin million)
Name of the Amount |
Bank [Nature | Working :
of current | capltal Quart- ; dincloss: [ AMoUnt; 45 Diffie- Remarks/ reason (if
' : er Particulars | -ed as | per books
assets sanction-- | rence | any)
| i io ended | per of accounts
offered as | ed limit
b return
security] |
SBM  Bank | ¥ 150 30 Inventory 123.96 126.72 | (2.76) | The difference is
(India) Limited | million June dus to submissions
[Entire 2022 : being made basis
Current 31 Invent'uw 98 G5 95,83 183 Fer‘u"iSiﬂrlEll ﬁl'ljﬂl'il.'.:iﬁ'
Assets) March infarmation prior to
| 2023 the Company’s
| ) | financial reparting
| Trade a7.38 99 45 {2.07) | closure procass.
. Receivables
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2023

(i) (a) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted advances in the nature of

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

loans to any other entity during the year. However, the Company has granted loans to Other parties
as per the details given below:

0 e i —_—
Particulars . Fin
million

Aggregate amount granted during the year

- Others 1.88
| Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases 1.57

- Others

(b) The Company has not made any investments, provided any guarantes, given any security or
granted advances in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has granted
loans which in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
terms and conditions of the grant of loan are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d) There is no averdue amount in respect of loan to such other parties.

(e) The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loan which had fallen due during
the year but such loans or advances have not been renewed or extended nor has the Company
granted fresh loans to settle the overdue amounts of existing leans or advances given to the
same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/services/business activities. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employess' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of
mare than six months from the date they became payable.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in
sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute except for the following:

; (% in million)
' Amount | Period to |
Mame of | Mature | Gross paid which the | Forum where dispute is
the statute | of dues | Amount | under amount pending
| Protest | relates
Mahara 1.47 - | F.Y.18-19 Assistant Commissionear of
Sales Tax - | -shira Sales Tax - Maharashtra
Maharashtr | Value |
a Added .
Tax I |

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981 (43
of 1961) which have nat been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given te us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

{¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation during
the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years, Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis
have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

() & (f) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.,

(x} (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
{fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(%) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
managemeant of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during
the year.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023

(xil) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reparting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under, Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under sectian
177 of the Act.

{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an internal
audit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal audit system.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 182 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company., :

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directians, 2016) does
not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to # 4.48 million in the current financial year but had not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumpticns, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall dus within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liahilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023

{xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of
the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

Far Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountaits
Firm's Reqgisfrati L D01078N/NS00013

Rakesh R. Agarwal
Partner
iMembership Mo.: 109632

UDIN: 23109632BGXDZX3798

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Artisan Spirits Private Limited (the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal finandial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

5 \We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based
on the intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAL.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registr MNo.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh
Partner
Membaership MNo.: 109832

UDIN: 23109632BGXDZX3798

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
{Amaount in F million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote Mo,
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3
Right-of-use asacts 34
Capital work-in-progress a8
Goodwill 4
Other Intangible assets 4
Financial assats
Loans o+
Other financial asseis [i]
Deferred tax assets (net) [
Mon-current fay assels ¥
Other non-cuirent assels &
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories a
Financial assels
Trade receivables 10
Cash and cash equivalents 11
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalonts 12
Loans o
Other financial assois G
Other current asscts B
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13
Othar equity 14
Total equity
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabililies
Borrowings 16
Lease liabillies 16
Provizions 18
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabililies
Borrowings 15
Lease liabilities 16
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises 149

- Total outstanding dues of creditors olther than micre enterprises
and small enlerprises
Oither fimancial liabilitios

Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Az at
31 March 2023

As sl
31 March 2022

130.41 127.18

3.50 1.28
0.97 B
8.43 8.43
48.22 56.49
1.09 0.17
17.24 6.24
1.84 211
5.65 4.76

21735 206.67

96.83 115.53
99.45 18802
10.50 746
37.47 40.71
0.65 0.08
27.72 10.76
1.27 0.98

273.89 36354

491.24 56921

353.50 353.50

(320.51) (279.32)
32.99 74.18

371.72 381.76

1.95 0.52

- 0.85
373.67 28313
29.33 40.26
1.71 0.81
0.04 0.83
38.74 38.33




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Amount in  million, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our audit report of even date

Rakeszh R.
Farlner
Membarship Mo, ; 1089632

Place: Mumbsi
Dato: 2 May 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Artisan Spirits Private Limited

we W

Chaitanya Rathi ttu Varghese
Director CFO and Whaole time Director
DA 07705302 DI - 08706247

Company Secrelary
Membership Mo, AS0009

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Nota Year ended Yoar endecl
Mo 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income
Revenue lrom operations 21 456,79 43325
Other income 22 1.55 3.34
Total income 458.34 136.59
Expanses
Cost of materials consumed 23 19.36 G047
Exvise duty on sales 1.65 0.52
Purchase of stock-intrade 271.70 23691
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-rade 24 18.76 (21.37)
Employes benefits axpense 25 19.41 15.07
Other cxponsos
- Salling, distribution and markoting cxpense 26 41.39 2127
- Dther expensos 27 GR.03 a8.28
Total exponsos 44030 AT0.T5
Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortisation (EEIDTA) 18.04 6584
Financea costs 28 0. 36.53
Depreciation and amortisation exponsa 29 20.91 12.32
(Loss) /Profit before tax (42.08) 16.90
Tax expense i

Current lax - -

Deferred income tax - -
Met (Loss) Profit for the year (A) {42.08) 16.99
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified subsaquantly to statement of profit or loss (net of tax)

- Gain/ {loss) on remeasuremnent of defined benefit plans a2 0.89 (0.83)
Other comprehensive income { (loss) for the year, net of tax (B) 0.89 (0.83)
Total comprehensive (loss) fincome for the year, net of tax (A+B) 41.19) 16.16
Eamings per equity share of nominal value ¥ 10 each
Basic (in F) a0 {1.19) 0.05
Diluted (in F) {1.19) 0.05

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements




Arlisan Spirits Private Limited
Statement of Protit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

tAmount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss reforrad
Lo in our audil reporl of even date

For Walker Cha
Chartercd Acoour
Firm Regigration Mo, pO10TEN [ NS00013

& Co LLP

Partner
Membarship Mo, 109632

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 2 May 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Artisan Spirits Private Limited

\ s
W

Chaitanya Rathi Bittu Varghese
Director CFO and Whole tima Diractor
DIM ;07705302 DI : 08708247
L
2
jal Govani

Company Secrotary
Membership Mo, ARDDOS

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
{&mount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

A, CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Met (loss)’ Profit betors tax (42.08) 16.94
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amarnlisalion expanso 20,91 17,42
Intares axpense 3r.: 32.05
Interast incomea {1.25) (3.11)
|oss allowance on financial assels 17.15 245
Mllowance for non-moving' obsolete Inventory 2 0.42
Provisions no longer required wiitten back (0.85) {4.68)
Unrealised exchange gain an foreign currency translations {net) (0.87) (0.18)
7511 3824
Operating profit before working capital changes 33.03 H6.28
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Decrease in invenloniss 15.99 7.0
[Decreasa in rade recsivablas G735 30.58
(Increase) f Decreasa in currentnen-current financial and other assets (32.97) &,11
Increase in trade payables and other financial / other liabiliies and provisions [7.85) {44 57)
42 52 (087

Cash generated from operations 7555 0041
Direct taxes refund reccived 7 {paid) 0.27 (0.72)
Met cash generated from operating activities (A) 75.82 34,689

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of proparty, plant and equipment (Refer note 2 below) (16.42) (556.04)
Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.01 -
Proceeds from bank depasits with original maturity of more than three months 2.88 18.72
Interest received 2.44 3.30
Consideration paid for acquisition of business (Refer note 42) {2.10) (161.65)
Met cash used in Investing activities (B) (13.19) (193.67)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-lerm borrowings 144.74 G21.61
Repayment of long-term borrowings (154.78) (474.24)
Repaymeant of short-tarm borrowings (net) (10.93) {10.36)
Froceeds from issue of equily share capital (Including sacurity premium) - &0.00
Interest paid (37.22) {33.45)
Repayment of lease liabilities {1.40) {0.50)
Met cash (used) / generated from financing activities (C) (59.59) 143.06
Met increase in cash and cash equivalants (A+8+C) 304 4,08
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 7.46 3.25
Adid: Cash and cash equivalents acquired in business combination (refer note 42) - 0.13
Cash and caszh cquivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 11) 10.50 746
Motles:

1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method &35 sel oulin Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

# Addifions to property, plant and equipment include movements of capital work-in-progress, capital advances and liability for capital goods.




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

This iz the: Cash Flow Statement referred o in our audit
report of even date

For Walker Chandio
Chartered Accountants
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Partner
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity as at and for the year ended 21 March 2023
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Particulars Mumhber F million
Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach izsued, subscribed and paid up
As at 1 April 2021 29,350,000 20350
Izsucd during the year 6,000,000 G0.00
As at 31 March 2022 35,260,000 353.50
Issued during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 35,350,000 353.50
b) Other equity
Particulars Reserves and  Other reserve Total

surplus

Retained Cash flow hedge

carnings reserve
As at 1 April 2021 (295.27) {0.21) (295.48)
Profit Tor the year 16.99 - 16.99
Other comprehensive income items reclassilied to Statement of Profit and Loss {0.21) 0.21 -
ther comprehensive loss for the year {0.83) - (0.83)
As at 31 March 2022 (279.32) - (279.32)
Laoss for the year (42.08) - (42.08)
Other comprahensive gain or the year 0.89 - 0.89
As at 31 March 2023 (320.51) - (320.51)

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred Lo
in our audil report of even dato

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Partnar
Membership Mo, | 109632

Flaca: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023

Artisan Spirits Private Limited

WA

Chaitanya Rathi
Dirgctor
DIM - 07705302

A\
jal Govani

Company Secrelary
Membeorship Mo, ASD009

-

Place: Mumbai
Date: 2 May 2023

Bittu Varghese

CFO and Whole tima Director
DIM - 0BTO8247




Mote 1 Corporate Information

Artisan Spirils Private Limited (the "Company") is a private company domiciled and headguarlered in Mumbai, India
and was incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, The Company having CIN
U15122MH2011PTC222280 is engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages.
The regislered office of the Company is located at 901 Solaris One, N.5. Phadke Marg, Andheri East, Mumbai-
400069,

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 ("financial statements™) were
authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Direclors on 2 May 2023,

Mote 2.1 Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all malterial respects with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 {'lhe Act’) read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to lme noliied under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

The financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention with the exception of certain
financial assets and liabilities and share based payments which have been prepared to comply with the Indian
Accounting standards (‘Ind AS"), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, (as amended from fime to time) and Presentation and disclosure requirements of Division 11 of Schedule
1l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule I} as amended from time to time. The Company’s
financial statements are reporied in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional currency, and all
values are presented in * million (" 000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

ii. Operating cycle and current, non-current classification

Based on the nature of services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash eguivalents, the Company has ascerlained its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current! non-current classification of assels and liabilities. The Company presents assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current! non-current classification,

An Asset is Current when:

It is expected lo be realised in normal operating cycle.

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

It is expected to be realised wilhin lwelve maonths after the reporting peried, or
¢ |tis cash or cash equivalent.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A Liability is current when:

s |lis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

o |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

s |tis due to be sellled within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

= There is no uncondilional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afler the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabililies as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respectively.




Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of
Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabililies as at the dale of financial statements and the resulls
of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management’'s boest
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised
in the periad in which they are determined.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
dale, thal have a significant risk of causing a malerial adjustment Lo the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
aboul fulure developments, however, may change due to markel changes or circumstances arising thal are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflecled in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Examples of such estimates include estimation of useful lives of property plant and equipment,
cmployeo costs, assessments of recoverable amounts of deferred tax assels, trade receivables and cash
generating units, provisions against litigations and contingencies.

Estimates
(a) Useful lives of various assets

The Company has estimated the useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the
estimated usage of the assel, the operating condition of the assel, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the
assets at each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amaortisation
expense in the fulure periods.

(b} Current Income Taxes

The tax jurisdictions for the Company is India, Significant judgments are invalved in determining the provision
for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being suslained in tax
assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended
time periods. The recognition of taxes that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is
assessed individually by management based on the specific facls and circumslances.

(c) Contingencies

Conlingenl Liability may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company.
By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain fulure evenls occur or fail
to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events

(d) Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future
events are used to calculate plan expenses and liabilities. These factors include expected discount rate
assumplions and rate of fulure compensation increases, To estimate [hese factors, actuarial consullants
also use estimates such as withdrawal, lurnover, and mortalily rales which require significant judgment. The
actuarial assumptions used by the Company may differ materially from actual results in future periods due
to changing market and economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial rulings, higher or lower withdrawal
rates, or longar ar shorler parlicipant life spans.




(e} Impairment of financial/ non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amounl by which an assel’s or cash-generating unit's carrying
amount excoeeds its rccoverable amount to determine the recoverable amount, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each asset or cash generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate
in order to caleulate the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expecled fulure cash
flows, managemenl makes assumplions aboul future operating results. These assumptions relate to future
events and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause significant adjustments to the
Company's assets.

In mosl cases, delermining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to
market risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.

v. Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. (Refer note 33).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid Lo transfer a liabilily in an orderly lransaction
between markel parlicipants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the assct or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-inancial assel lakes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valualion technigues thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
stalemenls are calegorized wilhin the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs olher than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market dala (unohservable inpuls).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporling
period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Managemenl verifies the major inpuls applied in the latesl valuation by agrecing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources o determing whether the change is reasonabla,




vi.

vii.

viii.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible Assets)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including atlributable inlerest and finance costs, if
any, lill the date of acquisilion/ inslallalion of lhe assets less accumulaled depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised anly
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cosl of
the item can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and mainlenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements,
cither on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisilion of the business in
excess of the acquirer's inleresl in the nel fair value of the idenlifiable assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or
circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying amount.

Brands acguired in a business combination and recognised separately from Goodwill are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition value {which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
reparted at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Other Intangible assots are stated at cost, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the itern will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Other Intangible assels mainly comprise of implementation cost for
software and other application software acquired and brand acquired through business combination

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment ('PPE") is calculated using the straight line method as per the
estimated useful lives of assets as below:

Asset category Useful life (in ],.rears}_ Basis of determination of useful lives ]
Leasehold improvermnent Ower the lease -
period
Plant and equipment 15—-256 Assessed to be in line with Schedule 1] to the Act |
| Furniture and fixtures | 10 | Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act
=' Vehicles 3] Assessed to be in line with Schedule 1l to the Act
Office equipment 5 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Acl
Computers 3 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act ]
Oak barrels | 15 | Management eslimate®

* Useful lives of asset classes determined by management estimate, which are generally lower than those
prescribed under Schedule || to the Act are supported by internal technical assessment of the useful lives,

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed al the end of each reporling period, wilh the effect
of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which asset is ready for use,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds wilh the carrying amounts, These are
accounted in Statement of profil and loss within Other income! Other expenses.

Amortisation on Intangible Assets

Intangible assels are amortised on a slraighl line basis, from the date they are available for use, over their eshmated
useful lives that is a period of three to ten years. . =




[ Asset category i Useful life (in years) Basis of determination of useful lives
Brand 5-10 Management estimate o
Compuler software 1 3-6 B Assessed lo be in line wilh Schedule 1] lo the Act
Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of tfransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subseqguently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (nel of transaction costs) and the redemplion
amounlt is recognised in Statement of profit and loss over-the period of the borrowings using the effeclive inleresl
melhod, Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheel when Lhe obligation specilied in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The dillerence belween lhe carrying amounl of a financial liability that has been
exlinguished or lranslerred lo another parly and lhe consideration paid, including any non-cash assels transferred
or liabililies assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit and loss as other gains/{losses). Borrowings are
classified as currenl liabililies unless the Company has an unconditional righl to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months afler the reporting period.

#. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or
equily instrument of anather entity.

a. Financial Assets

(i) Initial Recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assel, Purchases or sales of financial assels thal require delivery of assels wilthin a time frame
establizhed by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(i) Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assetz are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dales lo cash flows thal are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses
arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('"OC!'") if these financial
assels are held within a business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect confraclual
cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are =olely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losseas, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at FVPL. In respect
of equity investments (other than for investment in subsidiaries) which are not held for trading, the Company
has made an irrevocable eleclion o present subsequent changes in the fair value of such instruments in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument
basis at the time of transition for existi




{(iii} Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected crodil loss ("EGL") model for
measuremeant and recagnition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk cxposures.

The Company follows ‘simplificd approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credil risk, Rather, 1l
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its inilial
recognition.

Faor recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company delermines
that whelher there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used o provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credil quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
ariginal EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expecled credil losses resulling from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifelime ECL which results
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights lo the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to conlrol the fransferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and
an associated liability for amounts it may have lo pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial assel,
the Company conlinues lo recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

b} Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and barrowings
and payables as appropriale. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, nel of directly atiributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement
The measuremenl of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at F\WVPL:

Financial liahilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabililies designaled upon
initial recognition as al FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the




Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognilion, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR methad. Gains and losses are recognised in stalement of profit and loss when
lhe liahilities are derecognised as well as through (he EIR amartisation process. Amortised costis calculated
by taking inle account any discount or premium on acquisilion and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisalion is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

+ De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
ar expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is lreated as de-recognition of the original liabilily and recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respoctive carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢} Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange forward contracts that hedge foreign currency risk associated with highly probable
lorecasted are classified as cash flow hedges and measures them at fair value. The eflfeclive portion of
changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit or loss and is included in the ‘Other income/
oxpenses’ line item. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulaled in
equity relating to effeclive portion (as described above) are reclassified to the profit or loss in the periods when
the hedged item affects profil or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged ilem,

d) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention lo sellle on a
net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simullaneously,

xi. Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan

Cantributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees' state insurance, labour
welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of confribution required to be made as and
when services are rendered by the employees. Company’s provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees, is made to a government adminislered fund and charged as an expense to the Slatement of
Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Delined Contribution Schemes as the Company has
no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

b} Defined Benefit Plan

The Company provides for gratuity which is a defined benefil plan, the liabilities of which is determined based
on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by an independent acluary using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, inrespect of graluily are recognised in
the QCI, in the period in which they occur and is not eligible to be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in subsequent periods, Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
of plan amendment or curlailment, The classification of the Company's obligation into current and non-
current is as per the actuarial valualion report,

c) Leave entillement and compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. Leave entitlement, other than short term compensated absences, are provided based on
a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefil. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of leave entitle r- setngnised in the Slalement of Profit and Loss in_thegedod in
which they occur.

i,...-f |
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d} Short-term benefils

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as
expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the related
sarvice is rendered, Expenses on non-accumulaling compensaled absences is recognised in the period in
which the absences ocour.

Inventories

Invenlories which comprise of raw malerials, work-in-progress, finished goods, slock-in-rade, packing
materials and stores and spares are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The comparison of
cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Cost of invenltories comprises all cosls of purchase, cost of conversion and olher costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. The cost is determined as follows:

s Raw Materials, Traded goods, Packing Materials and Consumables arc valued using the weighted average
method,

s Finished goods and work-in-progress are valued at the cost of raw materials along with fixed production
overheads being allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three month or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating
result of the whole Company as one segment of "Manufacture, purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages".
Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operaling Segments”, the Company's enlire business falls under this one
operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet
and the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
{a) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction.

{b) Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing rate at
the reporting date. Mon-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(c) Treatment of Exchange Difference

Exchange differences arising on settlement! restatement of short-term foreign currency monetary assets
and liahilities of the Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised al a point in time when control of the goods or services
is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideralion Lo which the Company expects to
be enlitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from sale of goods is inclusive of excise dulies
and is nel of relurns, Irade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and such amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 115 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{(*ICAI"), the Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account
and hence is a liability of the manufacturer which forms parl of the cost of production, irrespective of whether
the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue
includes excise duly. However, sales taxivalue added tax (VAT), goods and services tax (GST) is not received
by the Company on its own account and is tax collecled on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

{a) Revenue from sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a point in time when control of the product transfers and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceplance of the products. Revenue is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and lhe
rovenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable (nel of allowances, discounts and volume
rebates), taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or dulies
collecled on behalf of the government with an exception to excise duty.

(b} Revenue from sale of services

Revenue from sale of services represents revenue from hospitality services which mainly comprise of sale
of room nights, food and beverages and allied services relating to the resort and winery. Revenue is
recognized at a point in time when the services are rendered. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable (net of allowances or discounts) excluding taxes or dulies
collected on behall of the government.

(¢} Interest Income
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective inlerest rale is the
rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assel o the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included under the head "other income” in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{d} Other Income
Other items of income are accounted as and when the right o receive such income arises and it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably.

Government Grants

Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant
! subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions are complied with. Government grants related to revenue
under Wine Industry Promotion Subsidy linked with Value Added Tax, are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they become receivable. Where the grant or subsidy relales to an asset
{i.e. Export Promolion Capilal Goods scheme), it is presented in the balance sheet by setting up the grant as
deferred income which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss linking to the fulfillment of
the associated export obligations.

Income Tax

OCI.




a) Current Income Tax

Currenl income lax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for
allowances and exemplions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current income tax assets and
lizbilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the laxalion authorilies.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
cnacted, al the reporling dale,

b) Deferred Income Tax

Deferred lax is delermined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised for all deductible lemporary dilferences belween the financial statements’ carrying amount
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted fax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet
date. The effecl on delerred lax assels and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the period
that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised {o the extent that itis probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets are reviewed al each Balance Sheel dale lo reassess realisation. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offzet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset currenl lax assels and liabilities, Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
gither to sellle on a nel basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

¥ix. Leases

XX.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right lo conirol the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange of the consideration.

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and a corresponding lease liability for all the lease
arrangements in which it is a lease, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term lcases)
and low value leases, For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the period of lhe lease,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made al or prior to the commencement date of the lease. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated deprecialion and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. The estimated useful life of the assets are determined on the same basis
as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicals
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Carrying amount of right-of-use asset is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the assel’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

The lease liahilily is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The future lease payments are discounled using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. For a lease wilh reasonably similar characieristics, the
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or
the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whale.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilitics have been separalely presented in the Balance Sheet, Further, lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whelher there is an indication that a non-financial
asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairmenl loss recognised in
the previous periods. If any indication exists, or when gnnual impairment testing for an asset is required, the

et loss is recognised when the carryiftoa
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XXV,

Recoverable amount is delermined:
- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assels’ fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash generaling unit's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimaled Tulure cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the
assot. In delermining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into accounl. I no such
transaction can be identified, an appropriale valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on invenlories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCIL For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the assel, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring afler the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold
or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised inilially al Tair value
and subsequently measured at amorlised cosl using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. Trade
receivables ageing has been presented based on the date of lransaction. Further, in respect of trade
receivables from Government Corporations, payment are received on lump-sum basis instead ol an invoice-
by-invoice settlement. Accordingly, the collections/ realisations from corporation trade receivables are
accounted against the earliest outstanding invoice.

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased
or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior 1o the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are
unsecured and are usually settled as per the paymenl lerms staled in the contract. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially al their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Trade payables ageing has been presenled based on the date of transaction.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The acquisition methed involves the
recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabililies, including contingent liabilities, regardless of
whether lhey were recorded in the financial statements prior to acquisilion. On inilial recognition, the assets
and liabilities of the acguired business are included in the balance sheet at their fair values, which are also
used as the bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies.
Goodwill is stated after separating out identifiable inlangible asseis. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Company’s share of the identifiable net assels of the acquiree at the
date of acquisition. Any excess of identifiable net assets over acquisition cost is recognised in the olher
comprehensive income on the acquisition date and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

Acquisition related costs are accounted for as expenses in the period in which lhey are incurred and the
services are received

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equily shapsessisianding during the period and for all periods preserted.

adjusted for events, such as bonus sha’&w&m the conversion of potential equity shareg,
changed the number of equity shares o Bot a corrospanding change in resource

I
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Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for Ihe period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and also the weighled average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upnn conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued al fair value (i.e. the average market value of
the outstanding equity shares).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or conslruclive) as a result of
past events and it is probable thal an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o
sallle lhe obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions
{(excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required
to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheel dafe. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increasea in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet dale and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

The Company recognises a provision in respect of an onerous confract when the expected benefits to be
darived from a contract is lower than the unavoidable costs of meeling the fulure obligations under the
cantract. The provision is measured al lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expecled
net cast of fulfilling the contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
nol wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and amortisation (EBIDTA)

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and amortization (EBIDTA) is computed by adding interesl
(finance cost), tax expenses and depreciation and amortization expense to net profit for the period/year.

Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosurs is relevant to explain the performance of the enlerprise for the period, the nature
and amount of such material ilems are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

MNote 2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporale Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to lhe existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA
amendead the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires (he entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, The Group does not expect any
significant impact of the amendment on its financial statements,

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has
infroduced a definition of "accounting eslimales’ and included amendments to Ind AS & to help entilies
dislinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, The Group does not expect
any significant impact of the amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so
that it does not apply lo transactions that give rise to equal and offselling lemporary differences. The effective
date for adoption of lhis amendment is annateedods beginning on or after 1 April 2023, The Grodp-does not
expect any significant impact of the ar e 3 \RI &N
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Artisan Spirits Private Limiled

Summary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1o the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in F millien, unless otherwise stated)
Ausoal
31 March 2022

Mote 5 Loans

Asal
3 March 2022

Non-current
Loans o cmployaes 1.0% 0.7
Taolal non-current loans 1.09 0y
Current
Loans to employoos . bss S
Total current loans 0.65 0.0
Total loans 1.74 (035
Break-up of security details
Loains receivable considenad ool - secured P -
Loaing receivabde good - unsecured 1.74 0.25
Lesang receivable which have significant increase in credit sk -
| csang recelvabls credit impaired = :
Total 1.74 (1,75
Mote & Other flnancial assets
Mon-current
Gaovernmenl grants recelvable (Refer note 33) 11.18 114
Sacurily deposits 5.83 4.5
Banks deposits with malurity of mare han 12 manths 0.23 n.2a
(pledged with excise authorities or eanmarked againsl bank guarantess faken) i
Total non-current financial assotls 1r.24 6.24
Current
Gavernment granss receivable {Rofor nole 33) 14.43 a8.78
Security doposils 13.02 0.52
Interest accrsed an bank deposits 027 1.45
Total current financial assets 2772 10,74
Total other financial assets 44,96 17.00
Mote: Hafer nole 14 for information on government grant recoivable pledged as secunly agalnst horowings of the Company.
HWote T Income tax assets
i. Tha following table provides the detalls of Income tax assests as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:
Inceme tax assels 1.84 211
Tatal Income tax assets 1.84 2.1
Ii. The gross movement in the current income 1ax assets s as follows:
Incame 1ax assets at the beginning 21 1.38
Income tax (refund) [ paid [nat] [0.27) 0.72
Income tax assets at the end 1.84 2.1
ii. Income tax ecxpense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises: Year ended Wear ended

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Caurrent 1ax #
Defarred lax 5 =
Incoma tax exponses
iii. & reconclliation of the income tax expense o the amount computed by applylng the statutory income tax rate to the
{Loss) ! Profit before income taxes is as below:
{Loss) Profit hefore income fax (42.08) 16.00
Apolicable income tax rate 25.17% 2.17%
Computed expecled tax expense [ (credit) (10.59) 4.8
Effiecl of expenses not allowed for tax purposs: 0.02 (1.0
Lffect of deferred tax assels nod croaled on lax losses (Refer note 7.1 below) 10.57 [41.33)

Income tax expense charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss

Iv. Components of deferred income {ax assels and liabilities arising on account of temporary diffcrences are:
As al
31 March 2023
{a) Deferred tax liabilities

Asal
31 March 2022

- Tirming difference cn tangible assats depreciation 609 3.2
509 a2

{bb} Deferred tax assets (Refer note 7.1 below)
- Business lozs [ unabsorbed depreciation B 6.00 3.32
.00 122

Defarred tax assels (net)




Arlisan Spirils Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and cthor cxplanastory infenmation Lo he financial slalements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

[Amount in ¥ million, unless otharwise stated)

v, Movemaent in components of deferred 1ax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Deterred fax libilitios on
timing difference on
tanglble assels
duepreciation

(A

AL April 2001 -
[Charged)} § crediled
- Lo prefit or loss

L alber cornprchensive income G
AL 31 March 2022

Deferred Lax assels on

business loss |
unabsorbed
deprecialion

()

{3.22)

Talal

C=(A)+{B)

[3.22)

(Charged) § credited
- b prodit ar lnss
- to other comprehensive income

(2870

At 31 March 2023 6.09

{6.09)

Mota: 7.1 In the absence of convinging evidence of fidure taxable profits againat which unused 1ax losses (including unabsorbed depreciabion) can be ulilisod, the Compsany
has recognized deferred lax assels in respect of the lemporary dillerences anly 1o the exlent of defared tax liabilties,

Loss Carried Forward
Unabsorbed
Depreciation

Loss Incurred In Assessment year
Business Loss

201213 - o7
201514 - .97
Aid-1h - J.or
A0G-16 - 6,25
2016-17 4,50
2017-18 - 4.97
20168-19 f.hd £
2019-20 dd 2.90
20201 24.90 2.10
N23-24 12323 2849
Mote 8  Other assaots

Mon - Gurrent

Balancas with govermmonl aulhorilies
Prepaid graluily {Refer note 52
Frapald expenses

Total other non-current asscls

Current

Advance to suppliers
Less: impairmenl allowance {12efer nola below)

Prepaid expansas
Total other current assets

Carried Forward Walid Upto
Businoss Loss

2026-27
2027-28
2028-29
2031-32

Unabsorbed
Depreciation

Indefinile
Indedinite
Indledinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinita
Indefinite
Indediniio
Indedinile
Incledinite

As at
31 March 2023

A oal
31 March #0E2

514 475
0,37
014 0.0
5.G5 476
077 123.85
- (123.72)
0.77 013
0.50 .85
1,37 0.98

Note @ During the year ended 31 March 2023, advance lo supphers amountng o F 12372 millan in respect of which loss allowance was recognised in earfier years, has

heen writen off.

Note®  Inventories

Work-in-pregress { Semi-finlshed goods

Finished goods

Slock-in-Irade [incleding goods in transit ¥ 3.31 million (31 March 2022: 2 11.66 million)]
Consumables, slores and spores

Packing raterials

Total inventorles

As at A al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

53.47 LY
2.63 1.36

3289 49.00
2.09 1.949
575 503

96.83 1156.63




Artisan Spirits Private Limitod

Summary of significant accounting policies and olber cxplanatory infenmation to the financial statements as al and for the yvear ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in ¥ million, unless olherwise stated)

Motz 10 Trade receivables

Irade receivables considered good - secured
Trace ioeivables considend good - unsscurad
Trade receivablos which have signilicant increase in coedil risk

Trade receivables - crodit impairsd

Less: Loss allowance
Total Trade receivables
Mot 10,1 Trade receivables ara non-interest bearing and generalty on terms 30-90 days.

Mote 10.2 There are no trade receivables due from any direclor ar any afficer of the Carmpa

companses in which any director is a pariner, a direclor or a member.

Mote 10.3 Trade receiveable ageing schadule

Qutstanding fer following perlods from transaction date

s al

3 March 2023

M al
31 March 2022

99,45 18802
24.51 7.36
123.96 195.33
i24.51} (7.36)

99.45

188.02

rry, tilher severally or joinlly with any other person, or fram any lirms or private

Az at 31 March 2023 I
Not dus Less than & & months-1 1-2 years 2.3 Yours More than 3 Total
months year years
(1) Undisputed trade receiveablas- Consldersd - B4.92 13.14 0.03 1.356 0045
gl
{ii) Undisputed trade recoivablas which have - t - - -
sinificant increase in crodit risk
(il Undisputed trade receivablos - credit impaired - 0,73 009 0,24 - 1.086
(v} Dispated Irade receivables-considerod good ‘ £} * - -
(v} Disputed trade iecoivables which haye - . - =
significant increase in crodit fsk
{vl} Disputed trade receivalbles - credit impakrad - 0.01 .82 11.61 11.01 2345
85,66 13.23 0.85 13.21 11.01 123.06
Mote: There are no unbilled dues for lhe reporting period
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
2022 =
As at 31 March Not duye Less than 6 6 months-1 12years 2.3 Years Mare than 3 Total
maonths year years

(i) Undisputed trade receiveablas- Considersd good - 129.24 1.4 AG.57 B.05 270 188.02
(i) Undiisputed trade receivablos which have signilicant increase : 5 i )
In eredil risk
{iii} Undisputed trade receivablos - cradit impaired - 1,62 0.0 .54 LRI .03 2.29
{iv) Dispuled frade receivabies-considered good - - - - -
(v} Dispuded frade receivahles which have significant increase in i - - » . 2
credit risk
{vi} Digpuled trade recelvables - credit impaired . - - 1159 465 507

o - 130.86 1.47 47,11 8.53 T4 195.38
Mote: There are no unbilled dues for lhe reporting pesod
MNote 11 Cash and cash equivalents
Ealances wilh banks in current accourds 10.46 T.41
Cash on hand 0.04 005
Total cash and cash equivalents 10,50 v.A6
Mote: 11.1 Thero are no repatriation restrictions with renands Lo cash and casl equivalents a5 al the end of the respective ropording periods.
Note 12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposils wilh maturity of more (han 3 months but less than 12 mondhs 3747 4071
{held a= margin money or security againsl borowings, guarnle: and other comamilmerids)
Taotal bank balances other than cash and cash equivalonts 37.47 071
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of signilicant accounting policies and cther explanatory information to the financial stalements as al and for the yoar ended 31 March 2023
{amaount in T million, unless ofherwise stated)

As at Az at
1 March 2023 M March 2022

Hote 13 Equity share capital
Authorised shara capital
36,000,000 Equity shares of 10 faeh 360.00 360,00
137 March 2022: 26, 000,000)

Total authorised share caplial ) ) ﬂil].l:I{I 360,00

Feate: - Pursuant o e resokslion passed by (e Board of Directors of the Company a1 the mesting bold on 30 July 2021, the Company has increased the Authorised share
capital from 2 200 mifion comprizing of 320,000,000 Equily Shares of 3 10 cach o 7 360 millon comprising of 36,000,000 Equity Sharms of 2 10 each,

Issued. subscribad and fully pald-up equily share capifal:
35,350,000 Egudly shoros ol T 10 each 353.50 353,80
(31 Merch 20&2: 35,350,000)

Taolal issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 353.50 534,50
Reconclliation of the equily shares ouistanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Number 2 million

As al 1 April 2021 2.93.50,000 283580
lssued during the year (Refer note below) GO0k [0.00
As &t 31 March 2022 3,53,50,000 353.50
Rssind duing B wiar 5

As at 31 March 2022 3,53,50,000 353.50

Mote: During he year ended 31 March 2022 |, Company has issued 6,000,000 equity shares of 2 10 aach al face vabes for 7 60 million,

Terms [ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company s anly one class of euily shares having a par value of T 10 per share. Each halder of equity share is enfitked o ong vole per share. The Company
duclares and pays dividends in Indisn Rupees. The dividend proposed by e Ooad of Direclors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in e onsuing
Annueil Genzcal Moecding, cxcepl inlerim dividend, if amy.

In the event of liquidation of the Compamy, he hoklers of couity shares will be entitled 10 receive remalning assets of the Gompany, alles dislibudion of all preferentisl
amounts. The distribudion will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by e shorcholdors.

Sharcholding of mora than 5%: A at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Name of the Shareholder Na of shares % Holding Mo of shares % Helding
Sula Vineyards Limited {Farmerly Sula Vineyards Privale |imiled) - Holding Company 3.53.50.000 A00.00% 4,54 50,000 100.00%

As per racords of the Company, including its register of sharehofiersimembers e above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial cwnership of shares,

. Bonus shares [ buy back | shares for consideration other than cash lzsued during past five years:

(i) Aggregate number and dass of shares slotted as fully paid up pursuant o contracts withowl payment being received in cash - Mil
(i} Ageregats number and class of shares sliofbed as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil
(i} Agoregate number and class of shares bought Buck - Mil

Sharecholding of promoters:

As 31 March 2023

Particulars Name of the Promotor “No. of % held No. of shares, %o hzld o changé during
shares at at the end of tha year
tha the year
haginning of
the year
Fruity shares of 210 vach [Suls Vineyards Limited 35,350,000 | 100.00% 35,360,000 100.00%
fully paid
As 31 March 2022
Particulers Mame of the Promater | Mo.of Wheld | Mo. of shares 5 held % change during |
sharas at at the end of the year
the the year
beginning of
the year
(Fouily shares of £ 10 cach | Sula Vinuyards Limited 30,000,000 | 100.00% | 35,350,000 100.00%
fully paid




Arfisan Splrits Private Limited
Summary of signilicant accounting policies and other explanatory informaficn to the financial stalements as al and for the yaar ended 31 March 2022
(Armount in F millicn, unless olherwise stated)

Bl Az at
31 March 2023 3 Manch 2002
Mole 14 Other Equity

Fasamvas and Surples
- Hefained eamings (320.51) (2T0.52)
Tedal {320.51) {2749.32)

Makure amd purpose of reserves

i. Refained earnings
Retained eamings represenis the nel losses Wal the Gompany has incormed il date including gain ¢ {loss) on remeasurement of delined benefits plans as adjusted for
distribulivns Lo vwners, ransfer 1o other reserves elc.

Note 15 Borrowings

Nan-current borrowi ngs

Secured
Tenm loan from benks (Refer note 15.1) 102.07 17,37
Unsecured
Loan fram belling company [(Hefer noles 152 and 34) 208.098 27070
401.05 3@V.02
Lo Cured matuniy of long-term bormowings (29.33) {15.76)
Total non-current borrowings iz 38170
Il Current borrowings
Sacured
Loans from bank
- Wirking capital demand loans (repayaibke oo demand) {Refer note 15.3) J 2500
- Casrrent maturities of long-term borrowings 2033 15.26
29,33 40,76
Todal current borrowings ’ 29.33 A6
Total borrowings {1+11) 401.05 AZE02
Mote 15.1: Details of security and terms of repayment of non-current berrowings
As at 31 March 2023 )
Humbr of
Particulars]  installments Amouniper. Haba ol Security
. Installment Interest
Qutstanding 3 o o
Rupas 12 quarterly 7 0,59 million HB9% to  |First pari passu on entire propaely, panl and eouipment and cument azssts, including book debts
Toym kean  |inslallments o 9.20% bedh present and fulure, -
Fupu: 14 gquarlarly # &.74 millian B.85% 1o [Firsl pari passu on enlire progey, plant and equipment and current assets, incheding book debls
Term kan  |netalments 9,205 hoth present and fulure. |
As at 31 March 2022 -
i Number of Agmount per Rate of
Securil
Fartiark installments instaliment Interest kit
Rupas 16 quartarly T 7.5 million La5%  |First pari passu on entire properly, planl and cquipment and current assets, including book debis
Turm kaan lim-‘mllmentﬁ Bealhy prosent and fulue,

Mote 15,2 Detalls of unsecured non-current borrowings
Lz Ircen Hedding Company carmies interest ranging from 8.00% e 8.37% poa. (31 March 2022 ¥.B0%) and is repayabie by 31 March 2025

Mote 15.3 Detalls of security and tarms of repayment of current borrowings

Waonking capital demand loans of Company are repayable on demand, They carry Inferest rate ranging from 8.60% to 8.05% p.a. {31 March 20220 3,60% ) and ane
secured by firsl pari passu on Propesty, Plant and Equipment and current assals, including lade receivables bolh present and fushure.

Mote 15,4 Met debt reconcilialion
An anabysis of nel debd nd the movement In net debt for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 37 March 2002 is as follows:

As at A at
H March 2023 31 March 2022

(&) Mon-currend horrowings Ir.Tz2 J1LTE
(B} Currenl horewings 28,33 40,25
[C) Inderes) payands 0.B0 4R
(D) Cash and cash equivalents {10.50]) {7.AG)

Met dahbt (E | = (A+B+C40) 391.35 A15.52 :




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of signiticant accounting policies and ether cxplanatory information to the financial

tamount in # million, vnless olharwisa stated)

Balance as at 1 April 2024

Med increase In cash and cash equivakenls
Addition due tn business combinalion {refer nole 43)

Proceeds from long-tarm bormwings
Repaymant of kag-term borrowings

et repayment of shar-term bosrowings

IndErest expeense
Interest peid

Het deld as at 31 March 2022

Met increase in cazh and cosh equivalents

Praceeds from long-term horrowings
Repaymenl of long-tarm horrowings

Met repayment of shor-term borowings

Interesl crpense
Interens) paid

Nl debt as at 31 March 2023

Mote 15.5: Disclosures pursuant to the requirement as specilicd under Paragraph G{L){ix) {a)
Sheet of Schodule Il to the Act,

Financial year endad 31 March 2023

Liabilities from financing activities

Other assets

stalerments as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Taotal

Mon-current Current Interast Cash and cash [E J=lA+B+CAD)
borrowlngs  borrowings payahble eojuivalents
() 2] () [
23430 5062 A2.45 [3.24) 30421
[4.08) [4.08)
- - {0.13) {0.13)
G21.61 - - G21.61
{474.24) - - [474.24)
[10.35) - [10.136)
- 31.96 - 1.4
= - [53.45) - [43.45)
381.76 A0.26 096 {7.46) 41582
- - {5.04) {504
144,74 144,74
{154.78) - {154.73}
{183 - (1003}
A7.06 37.06
o < - {37.27) {37.22)
Tz 29.33 0.RD {10.50) 391,35

and (k) of the General Instructions for preparation of Balance

Armount
Quarter Ut v ml’::ﬂdlﬂ Ammount of
MName of Bank Particulars per books of il ek Reason for material variances
ended fuarterly  dilference
accounts
raturn/
statemant
June 207 SEM Bank Invemanies 126.72 124,06 {2.76) The: difference is dus fo submissions being made basis provisional
financial infenmation prior Lo he financksl reporling closure process by
Trade Recsivablos G487 16487 oo e Company asedfor by statutory awditors,
Financial year ended 31 March 2022
Amount
reparted in
Amount as
aar Namw: of Bank Particulars per hooks of thi Amount of Reason for matarial variances
endad quartarly dilference
Accounts
raturn!
; statement
December 5BM Rank, Inwentory 118.04 118.65 061 The difference is due o submissions being made basis provigional
2021 Trade Recalvables 100,74 211.04 11.23 Tnancial information prior to company's financlal reporfing clasure
process.
September 5BM Bank Invantories 106,54 103,52 {3.07] The: dillerance is dug o submissions biing made hasis pmisinﬁal
2021 I'radks Recaivables 102,04 180,02 {3.12) financial inforrnation prior 10 companys financal repoding closure
T procoss.
June 2021 ICICI Bank lenventonies 108 LF.63 [13.45) The dillorence is due Lo submissions boing made basis provisional
Trade Recelvabies 184.64 186.57 173 financial Infornation prior 1o compeny's financial reparting cosurs

oS,

Mote: There are no defalsiliscropancies for perivdsiyear Seplemoior 2022 , March 2022 , December 2022 amd Marcl) 2023

Naote 16 Lease labilifics

Mon-Current

Curran

Tolal Leasae liabllities

Hote: Reder nods 41 for Ind A% 116 Leazes and |he related disclsures.

Note 17

Curront
Interest accrued and dus
Interest accrued but nod due
Clhrs
- Liability for copital goods
- Securily deposi
Due o ermployoecs

Other financial labilities

- Purchase cunsideration payable towards business combinafn:

Total other financlal liakilities

Cher finsancial Rabiliies canicd a1 amontised cosl
Cihes financizl liatdilics carried at Py TPI

As at
31 March 2023

A al
A1 March 222

1.95 0.52
1.71 0.81
3.68 1,33
021 0.20
.80 0,86
2.51 234
210 AT
1.20 1.45

. 1.50 10.00
B3z 16.71
8.32

18.71



Artisan Spirils Private Limited

Sumrmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as al and for the yaar endead 31 March 2023

(fmount in F million, unless olherwise statad)

Naote 18 Provisions

Mon-current
Hreisicn for crnployes benefits {Refer nole 32)
- Caraluily

Agal
A March 2023

A5 at
31 March 2007

Total non-currant provisions

Current

Pravigion lor cmpioyes benefits (Refar nole 32}
- Compensated shsenves
Total current provisions

Total provisions

Nata 19 Trade payables

Total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprizes (Refer nole 19,2 bakow)

Fedal pubstanding dues of creditors olher han micre enterprses aod small enterprises

Total trade payables

Mote 18,1 ; Trade payables are non-inlenesl bearing and zre nomally seliled 25 per the payment terms stated in the contracl,
Mote 19.2 : Dues to micm, small and medium enterpises Lo the axent infarmation swvailabls with the Company is given below;

{a1) The principal amaunt and the inleresl dus therson remaining unipaid to supplier as 21 the end of year:

0.8
0.5
_ 0.52 053
0.5z 0,53
0.52 138
.04 0.83
074 33.33_
38,78 349,16

31 March 2023

3 March 2022

- Principal amount dus o micio and small emerprises .04 0.83
- Inlerest due 0.00 [(RVE)
(B The amount of interest pald by the: buyar in terms af section 16 of the MSMED Acl, 7006 along with the amounls of the
Fayment mace in lhe supplior beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. a
(c) The amount of inferest due and payable for he poriod of deley in making paymont (which have been paid but beyond the 0.0 0.04
appointed day during the year) hut withoul adding the inferest specified under the MSMED Asl, 2006,
{d) The amount of interest accroed and rzrmaining unpsld st the end of each accounting yesr, 0.0 e
{#) The: amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil such date when the inlerest 0.2 0.20
dues as above are aclually paid fo the small colerprisa for the purpose of disallowance as a deductibhs ependiture undar seclion
23 of liv: MSMED Act, 2006
MNote 19.3 : Trade payable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Quistanding fram following period from the transaction date
Farticulars Mordas o ClessthRNT  yooiies  saveas Aok thandvess Tatal
Dues yiar
(i} M3ME - 0.04 = 0.04
(i} Cthers - 17.36 21.25 013 - 3874
(i} Disputed dues- MSME - : % - - -
{iv) Dispuled duwes- Others & i i = - = -
1736 .20 0,13 - - 38,78
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding fram following pericd from the {ransaction date
Particulars Notdue ~ UnBled Lessthand o e 23yesrs  More than 3 years Total
Dues yaar
(i) MSMIE E - 0.67 011 0.05 s 083
(i) Dthars - 7T 2058 1.32 LERALE] 0.06 38,33
(i) Dispaled duwas- MSME - - . - . -
{iv) Disputed dues- CHhers - - + " i 4 -
- 7.27 30.26 1.43 014 0.06 39.18
As at Az at
31 March 2023 A1 March 2022
Hote 20 Other current liahilities
Statutory dues payahls - 5.02 12,43
Tatal other current liabilities 5.02 12.43




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial staterments as atl and for the year ended 31
March 2023

(Amount in F million, unless otharwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 A1 March 2022
MNote 21 Revanue from operations
(a) Sale of products (including excise duly) 425.59 407.71
(b} Sale of services 14.76 10.82
(&) Othear operaling revenues 16.44 14 .62
Total revenue from operations (a+b+c) : 456,79 43325
Maote 21.1: Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind AS 115
(A) Based on nature of product or service
(a) Sale of products
- Manufactured goods 63.25 47 67
- Tradad goods 362,34 260,04
425,59 407.71
(b} Sale of services 14.76 10.92
() Other operating revenues
- Government grant 15.59 9492
- Provizsions no longer required written back 0.B5 468
- Others - 0.02
16.44 14.62
Total revenue from operations (at+h+c) 456.79 A3325
(B) Based on timing of revanue racognition
Froducts transterred at a point of time 425.59 407.71
Services fransferred at a point of time 14.76 10,92

The amounts receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which on an average ranges batwaen 30-90 days. There is no
financing component in any lransaction with the customars. The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered
for sale of goods are for a shorter duration. All contracts entered by the company are fixed-price confracts. Further, the Company's entire business falls
under one aperational segment of manufaciure, purchase and sale of alcoholic bevaragas (Refer note 38).

Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price as required by Ind AS 115

Confract price 530.41 485.78

Add; Excise duly 1.65 n.s2

Les=: llems offsel against revenue from confracts with customers as required under Ind AS 115 ~ [1084T) (BB.59)
47559 A07.71

Mote 21.2: The following table gives details in respect of contract revenues generated from the top customer and top 5 customers for the year ended

Revonue from top customer 71.71 85,84
Revenue from top five customers 159.18 22325

For the year andsd 31 March 2023 one(1), [31 March 2022: twa {2]] customers, individually accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue
amounting to ¥ 7171 millicn { 31 March 2022 F 140,06 million)

Mete 22 Other income

(&) Inlarest income

- on financial assets caried at amortised cost 010 .04

- on bank deposits 0.90 2,67

- on Income fax refund 0.12 (.38

- on loans to employees 013 .02
1.25 311

(k) Exchanoe nain (net) 0.30 0.21

(g} Oiher oparaling income:

- Insurance claim - (1.2

Total other income 1.55 3.34




Artisan Spirits Private Limnited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2023

[Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 23 Cost of materials consumed

(&) Slock al baginning of the year
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

(b} Add: Purchases
Raw materials
- Packing materials

(¢) Less: Stock at the end of the year
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

(d} Cost of matenials consumed {a+b-c)
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

Total cost of materials consumed

Mote 24  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
(a) Opening stock

- Finished goods

- Worlk in progress

- Stock-in-trade

(b) Closing stock
- Finished goods
- Work in progress
Stock-in-frade

(g) Increase in excise duty on finished goods
Total changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (a-b+c)

Mote 26 Employes benefits expense

Salanes, wages and banus

Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer note 32)
Detined Benefit Plans (Refer note 32)

Staff wallare expensas

Total employee benefits expense

MNote 26 Selling, distribution and marketing expenses

Sales promofion expanseas

Comimission expenses

Marketing expenses

Total selling, distribution expenses and marketing expenses

Year ended Year endead
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
5493 -
5.93
11.55 B2
7.63 14.39
19.18 G6.40
5.75 5.93
5.75 5.93
11.55 521
T.81 546
19.36 G047
1.36
57.25 -
49.00 86,13
107.61 BB.13
2.63 1.36
5347 57,25
32 89 40,00
88.99 107.61
0.14 0.11
18.76 {21.37)
17.82 13,75
0.62 0.61
0.67 0.55
0.30 016
1944 15.07
.22 18.63
B.37 284
1.80 -
41.319 21.27




Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2023
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 27 Other expenses

Consumplion of stores, spares and consumables
Poweer and fusl

Repairs and maintenanoce:

- Building

- Plart and Machinery

- Others

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Sacurity charges

Travelling and conveyance

Rent [ Refer Mote 34 and 41)

FPayment to auditors;
- for statutory audit

- for other services (certification)

-tor reimbursement of expenses

Legal and professional feos

Reslauran] expanscs

Freight and handling charges

Lozs allowance on financial and non-financial aszats
Printing, stationary, postage and telephone expenses
Miscellaneous

Total other expenses

Mote 28 Finance cosis

Interest on:
- lease lability
- loans from bank
- cash credit facilities
- lzan fram holding company (Refer note 34)
- othors

Dther borrowing cosls
Total finance cosls

Mote 23 Depraciation expense

Dizpreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 3)
Deprecitaion on Right of use assels (Refar nola 3A)
Amortization of inlangible assets (Refer note 4)
Total depraciation and amortisation

Mote 30 Earnings per share (EPS)

Baslc and diluted EPS

A [Loss) f Profit computation for aarnings par share of 3 10 cach
Met {loss) / profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss available for equity shareholders (2 millian)

B. Weighted average number of equity shares
C.EPS - Basic EPS (%)
- Dilutad EPS (F)

Year ended Year endsd
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.74 243
1.83 1.87
0.50 119
111 2.37
1.54 1.22
13.94 . 16,16
0.27 0.22
1.62 1.07
0.42 D.29
5.58 EAT
1.18 1.06
0.04 0.04
0.02 0.01
1.78 4,450
10.24 .04
T.82 9.24
17.15 245
0.43 0.29
0.82 067
GH.03 58.28
0.25 0.09
13.36 10,15
- 117
22.73 20,51
0.97 0.13
3T 32.05
- 190 448
a3 36,50
12.38 T7.01
1.26 0,45
T.27 A.B6
2091 12.32
(42.08) 1600
3,55,50,000 3.21,77.397
{1.19) 0.05
(1.19) 0.056




Artizan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2023

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mole 31 Contingent liabilities and commitments As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A. Contingent liabilities

(i) Guaranlees issuad by banks on behalf of the Company 18142 7030
(i) Provident Fund

Based on the judgemeant by the Honorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident Tund liabilily, is not determinable at present, in view
af uncertainty on the applicability of the judgement o the Company with respect to iming and the components of its compensation slruclure. In absence
of further clarification, e Company has been legally advised to await further developments in (his mallsr o reasonably assess the implications on its
financial statements, if any.

Mote;

It iz nol praclicable for fhe Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective
preceedings. The Company does nol expacl any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilitics. Future cash oulllows in respect of the
above are determinable only an receipt of judgments / decisions pending with various forums! autharities, The Company does not expect any cutflow of
economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof,

B. Commitmants
i} Capital commitment (net of advancas) 0.06 0.74




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and ofher explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2023

{Amount In § million, unless otherwise stated)

Mol 32: Disclosure relating to employes benefits as per ind A5 19 "Employee Benefits’

)

h

=

d

&

g

h

}

}

=

Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (funded)

The gratuity plan is govermnad by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employes who has complated five years of service is enlitled

to specific benalils. The lavel of bonelils provided depends an he membess length of service and salany &t retirement age.

Changes in deflined benefit obligations

Prasent value of the obligation az at the beginning of he year
Current servico cosl

Interest cost

Remeasurmants - Mel aclurial (gain) lss

Beneafits pakd

Liability assumed on accounl of group bansfor

Present value of the abligation as at the end of the year

Changes in fair value of plan assets of the gratuity plan
Plan azzeis al lhe beginning of the year

Interest income

Remeasuramanl {loss) relurn on plan asscls

Genelits paid

Employer confributions

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Interesi expanse (nal)

Curment service cost

Total

Remeasurement lossl{gain) recognised in OC]

Remeasuramanl - Mal acluarial (gain}loss on defined benefit ebligatans
Remeazurement {loss}gain on actuarial valuation

Total

Movement in asset celling

Opening valua of azsel cailing

Hemeasurements dee e changes in surplus 7 (deficit)
Closing value of asset ceiling

Actuarial assumptlons

{i} Economic assumplions:
DChigcount rate

Salary escalafion rale

(i) Demographlc assumptions:
Mortality rate

Altrition rate

- Far ages 21-2) years
- For ages 31-10 years
- Far ages 41-50 years
- For ages 51-67 years

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

T.45%
11.00%

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-2014)
Ultimate

A.00% p.a.
5.00% p.a.
3.00% p.a.
0.00% p.a.

4,67 0y?
0.61 .43
032 0149
(0.99) .84

- (0.27)

- 2.71
461 467
3.82 147
0.26 0oy
(0.10) 0.0z

= {0.27)
1.00 283
__Jdga. - TEEE
0.06 0 e
0.61 0.43
0.67 0.55
{0.99) 0.89
010 (006}
(0B3) o83

- 003
- (003}

As at As al

31 March 2022

.50
12.001%,

Indian Assured Livas
Mertality
(2012-2014)
Liltimate

3.00% pa.
GO0 p.a.
3.00% pa.
D.UWI p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, caonsiderad in acluarial valuation, lake zccount of inflalion, senicly, promation and other relevant

factors, such as supply and darmand in the empleyment markel.

Investment detalls of Plan Assets

Major Categories of Plan Assets:
Insurer managed funds

31 March 2023
100%

31 March 2022
100%

The Gratuity scheme is invasied in a Mew Group Graluily Cash Accumulation Plan Policy offered by Life Inserance Corperation of India {115

and Adilya Dirla Sunlife Insurance Company | imited, The infarmation on the allocation of the fund into major assel st
an each major asset are not readily available. The expeclad rale of relurm on plan assets is based on market g

lhe year, Tor relums over the entire life of the related abligation.

Quantities sensitivily analysis for signillcant assumption |5 as below:

Sensitivily for significant actuanal assumplions is computed by vaning ongi@Etlan
abligation, keeping all other actuarial assumptions consiani. The signilicant sy

sl axpocled relurn



Artisan Spirita Private Limited

Summary of significant accounling pelicies and other explanatory information Lo the financial statements as al and for the year ended 31

March 2023
{Aanount in  milllen, unless otherwise stated)

i. Impact of change in discount rate on defined benefit obligations:

Prazenl value ol Cblgalion al end of the year
(&) Impact due 1o increase of 0005
(b} Impact due lo decrease of 0.50%

Il. Impact of change in salary on defined bensfit obligations:
Prazanl value of oblition al B ard of e yoear

a) Impact due 1o increase af 00005

b} Impact due lo decreasa of 0.50%

Year ended
M March 2023

{0.32)
0.35

0.31
(0.29)

Year ended
A1 March 2027

(0.35)
0.39

0.33
[0.32)

Sensitivities dua lo morlality and wilhdrawals ara nol malerial and hence impact of change doee Lo hese nol caleoiated, When caleulating the
sensilivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o significant actuaral assumptions, the same mathad (present value of the defined benefit abligatinn
calculated with the projected wnit credii method al the end of Lhe reporiing year) has been applied when calculaling the provision for defined

penefil plan recegnised in the Balance Sheet

The methad and types of assumpticns used in preparing the sansitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous years

Alhough the analysiz does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it provides an approximation of the

sansifivity of lhe azsurmplions showr,

Risk exposure:

Tha defined benefit plan iz axposad 1o a number of risks, the mosl signilicant of which are delailed below:

a} Salary Increases - Actual salary increases will increase the plan's liability. Incraase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will

alzo increase ihe liability

b} lnvestment risk - If plan is fundad then assets/liabiliies mismatch and aciual investment refurn on assels lower than the discount rale assumed

at the last valuzlion dale can impacl he liabilily

c) Discount rate - Reduciion in discouni rate in subsequanl valualions can increasa Lha plan's liabilily

d} Mortality and disability - Actual deaths and dizability cases proving lower ar higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities

e] Withdrawals - Actuzl withdrawals proving higher or lower than assurmed wilhdrawals and change of withdrawal rales al subsaguenl valualions

can impact plan’s liabilily

i) Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation
Within the next 17 menths
Betwean 2 and 5 years
Beyond 5 years
Total expected payments

Az at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 20022
0.36 012
0.59 0.0
15.41 165.G5
16.36 16.47

Mote: The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 1444 years | 31 March 2022 : 15.81 years)

1] Defined Contribution Plans

The Company alzo has cerdain defined centribation plans. The contributions are made to registered provident fund adminizterad by the
Gavernment. The obligation of the Company is limited 1o the amound confributed and it has no furdher confraclual nor any conslruclive

obligation. The expense recognised during the year lowards defined contribution plans are as follows,

a) The Company has recognised the following amaunts in the Statement of Prafit and Lass for the year

(i} Contibution to provident fund
{ii) Conlribulion 1o ESIC

b

=

0.59 .52
0.03 0.09
0.62 (.51

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick and privilege leavas. The amount of provision wilh respect 1o leave obligalion is 2

0.52 million {31 March 2022 : F 0.53 million) is presenled as currenl, since the Company dees noel have an uncenditional right te defer
settlemant for any of these ohligations. Howaver, bazed an past experence, the Company does nol expact all employees fo lake the {ull amount
of accruad leave or require paymenl wilhin the raxl 12 months, The expense recagnised during the year lowards leave encashment is 0,23

milllon {31 March 2022, T (.54 million)

11} Current! non-current classification as at the end of the year:
Gratuity
Man-current [defined benefit obligation)
Mon-current {prepaid gratuily)

b

Compensated absences
Current

As at
31 March 2023

Az oal
A1 March 2022

. 0.55
0.37

I 085
0.52 0.53
0.52 0.53




Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and othar explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33 Financlal Instrumants

The fair value of the financial assets are included at amounts &t which he insluments coukd be exchanged in a current ransaction between willing parties
olhar than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptinns wers used {0 aslimale Lhe [Eir value:

{a) Fair value of cash and sharl lerm deposils, ada and other short tern receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, approximate fheir carmying
amounts largely due to the shart-term maturities af these inslrumenls

{b) Financial instruments with fixed and varable interest rates are evaluaied by the Company based on paramelers such as interest rates and individueal

cradil warlhinass of the countarparty. Gased on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account tar the sxpected losses of thesa receivablas.

Financial instruments by catagory

The camying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as al 31 March 2023 are as lollows:

Particulars : Refer Amortised  Financial assets ! Financial assets! Total Total fair
note cost liabilities at fair  labilities at fair  carrying value
value threugh  value through OCI value
profit or loss
Assots:
| pans 5 1.74 g - 1.74 1.74
Others financial assets i 4446 - 7 44 96 4496
Trade receivables 10 99 45 . 5 09,45 0o.45
Cash and cash equivalents 11 10.50 s - 10.60 10,50
Banlk balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 12 3747 B - 3747 Iv4ar
Liabilities:
Borrowings 15 401.05 a = 40105 401.05
Leasa Liabilitics 16 3.66 366 3.66
Other financial liahilities 17 §.32 - = 5.az .32
Trade payablas 19 3878 = " 3578 3878

The camying value and fair value of financial instrumeants by calegonias as at 31 March 2022 arc as follows:

Particulars Refer Amortised  Financial assets/  Financlal assets! Total Total fair
nota cost liabilitics at fair  liabilities at fair ~ carrying value
value through  value through OCI wvalus
profit or loss

Assats:

Loans 5 0.25 - - 0.25 0.25
Others financial assets & 17.00 - . 17.00 17.00
Trade receivables 10 188.02 - - 188.02 188.02
Cash and cash equivalonts 11 746 - - T.4G T.4G
Bank halances alhar Lhan cash and cash eguivalents 12 40,71 o - 40./1 40.71
Liakilities:

Borrowings 15 422.02 - - 42202 422.02
Lease Liabiliies 16 1.33 - - 1,33 1.3a
Other financial liabilities 1¥ 18.71 - . 18.71 18,71
Irade payables 18 3816 - - 39.16 39.16




Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2023

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 34 Disclosure in accordance with Ind-AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

A, Names of related parties and nature of relationship

MName of the entity
(a) Ultimate Parent Company (having control over the entity)
Werinvest Group S (Until 19 December 2022)

(b} Holding Company
Sula Vineyards Limiled {Formerly Sula vineyards Limited)

(c} Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Chaitanya Rathi
Bittu Varghese
Monit Dhavale
Meeraj Sharma

B. Nature of Transactions

Transactions with related partics:

Sula Vineyards Limited
- Inleresl expense
- Rent expense
- Purchase of goods
- Purchase of property, plant and eguipment
- Sale of products
- Sale of property, plant and equipment
- Loan taken
- Loan repaid
- Repayment of interest
- Reimbursement of expensas
. Corporate Guarantes issusd on behall of the Company

C. Outstanding balances:

Sula Vineyards Limited
Loans payable
Interest accrued
Trade receivables
Corporate Guarantee issued on behall of the Company

‘represents amounlt less than 10,000

Dircctor

Director and CFO {appointed w.e.l, 7 November 2022)
Director {appointed woef 11 October 2021)
Director (appointed w.ef 17 Seplember 2020, resigned w.ef 3 Cotobear

2021)

Year ended
31 March 2023

22,73
.59
.97

147 46

144.74
125,45
20.48
90,52

As at
31 March 2023

298.95
(.00
1.62

119.31

Year ended
31 March 2022

20.51
0.39
29.61
(.74
48.66
0.1
504.28
458.97
40.54
173.76
159.57

Az at
31 March 2022

279,70

17463



Artizan Spirits Private Limited

Fummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023

{Amount in # million, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 35 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Caompany's aclivilies axpose il o a varety of financial risks; market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus iz to foresce the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial pedormance.

Market risk

Marked risk is the risk thal the fair value of futere cash flows ot & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and other price risk, such as cquily price sk, Major Gnancial instrements affectad by market
rigk includes loans and borrowings.

. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's expasure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 1o tha Company's olal debl obligations with floating interest rates,

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in inlares! rales on that portion of loans and borrowings affectad, With all
olher variables held conslant, e Company's loss before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings. as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
0.50 % movement 0.50 % movement
Impact on Profit fLoss for the year, 0.51 0.7

The assumed movement in basis points for the interost rale sensitivity analysis is based on the currently ohservable market environment, showing a
significantly highar salalility than in prior years.

. Foraeign currency risk
The Company evaluates exchange rale exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

The following table presents the forcign currency risk from financial instromeants 25 af 31 March 2023,

Particulars usD EUR Total

Asscts

Trade raceivables ;o 6.39 - 6.39
6.39 - 6.39

Liabilitles

Trade payables 413 211 I?.Ed

Lizbilily for capital goods 2 __':J:!:'.':'... = .00
413 212 6.24

Met assetsi{liabilities) 226 (213) 0.14

The fellowing table presents the forgign currency risk from financial instruments as at 31 March 2022,

Particulars usD EUR Total

Assets

Advance to supplier 0.0 - 0.09

Trade receivables o 1746 - 17.45
17.55 - 17.55

Liabilities

Trade payables 9.45 019 9,54

Liability for capital goods - 0.0 -

9.45 0.19 9.64
Met assetsi{liabilities) 8.10 () . )

Trapresenls less than 10,000

=
*( MUMBAI
cl

%\




Artizan Spirits Privata Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infermation to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023

(Amount in  million, unless otherwize stated)

Sensitivity analysis
The following table analyses the Companys sensilivity o 4 5% movement in the exchange rates of these curencies against (T) millions |, with all other
variablos hold constant. The sansitivity analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the company as al lhe reporling date

Yaar ended Year endad
Particulars
] 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impact on Statement of Profit and Loss
Ush 0.1 0.41
EUR _ , {0.11) (001

Equity price risk

The Company’s non-listed couity securilies are susceptinhe to mearket price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment seourities.
The Company manages the equily price risk through diversification and by placing fimits on individual and 1stal equily instruments. Reports on the equity
portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis, The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity
invesiment decisions. As al 31 March 2023, the company does not have any such equity investmenis.

Credit risk

Credit risk is tha risk thal counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrumecnt or customer contracl, leading o a financizl loss, The
company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) amd from its inancing activities, financial assets. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposure lo credit risk is monitored on an ongeing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers reguiring cradit
ower a cerlain armournt,

Trade receivables

Irade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from two main classes of Irade receivables e receivables from sales to
government corporations and receivables from salos o privale parlies. A substantial portion of the Company's trade receivables are from governmani
corporation customers having strong credit worthiness, Further, Company's historical experience of collecting receivables is thal cradil risk is low, except
during the current year wherein loss allowance is recognised for a materal recaivable. Hence, trade receivables are considered to be a single class of
financial assets.

Az at 31 March 2023 As al 31 March 2022
Fmillion o # millican %
Trade receivablas
- from government corporation 57.G1 57.93% 54.70 29.09%
- from private parfies 41.84 42.07% 133.32 70.91%
Total trade receivables (Refer note 10) 99.45 100.00% 18802 100.00%:

The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected credit loss is stated below:

As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 7.36 627
Impairment allowance on financial assets 17.15 1.0
Balance at the end of the yaar 24.51 7.36

Financial assets ather than trade receivables

Financial assets other than trade receivables comprise of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents, govermmenl
grant raceivables and loan to employees. The Company menitors the credit exposure on these financial assals on a case-lo-case basis, Based on the
Caompany's historical experence, the cradit risk an the abova mantioned linancial assets is also gssessed o be low,
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwizse stated)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to selllz or mael its obligations on fime or &l a reazonabla prica. The Company's lreasury
depariment is responsible for liquidily as sl as unding management. Inaddilion, processes and polcies relaled 1o such nsks are overseen by seolor
managumenl. Managemeant mnitors the Company's net iquidity poasition through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows

The table below pravides details regarding tha contractuzl maturities of significant financial liabiliies:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023 On demand  Lessthan 1 year 1-5years  Mare than 5 years Tatal
Rorrowinns - 29.33 Iz - 401.05
Trada payables 3875 - = 3a875
Lease habillics - 147 a7 A4.04
CHher financial liakilities - B3z - - B2
T840 37379 N i N 452.19
As at 31 March 2022
Baorrowings 25.00 16,76 381.76 - 4722 02
Trade payables - 3916 - - 39,18
Leasa labillies - 0.56 0.80 - 146
MMher financial labilities - 1871 - - 18.71
25,00 7379 382.56 - 481.35

Naote 36 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capifzl includes issued equily capital and all olher eguily attribulable (o the eguily holders of the
Company. The Company slives o szaleguard ils abilily 1o continue as a going coneern 20 thal they can maximise returns for the shareholders and benefits for
olkr slake holders. The aim 10 maintain an optimal capital structure and minimise cost of capital,

The Company manages its capilal structure and makes adjusfments in ligh! of changes in economic condilions and the requiremenis of the financial
covenants. To mainlain or adjus! The capilal slruclure, the Company may relurn capilal o sharchalders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment Lo
sharcholdars (il permitted). Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital using the gearing ratio which is 1otal debt divided by total
eguity.
As at A al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Tatal deht 401.05 42202
Tolal equily 3299 7418
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 1216 5.69

Brazchas in maaling the linancial covenanls would permit the bank 1o immediately call leans and borrowings. There have been na breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing leans and borrowing in the current ar previous financial yaar, In arder 1o achieve this overall ohjective, the Company's capital
management, amongst other things, aims to ensure thal il meets financial covenants allachad to the borrowings that dafine the capilal struclure requiremants.
In the long run, the Company's slralagy is Lo mainlain the geanng ratio of less than 075

Mote 37 Unhedged foreign currency exposure
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Currencies  Forelgn currency F million Forclgn currency F million

Trade receivables usoD T7,771.01 6.39 2,30,040.00 17.46
Trade payahlas EUR 23,670.00 21 225587 0.19

usoD 50,244.60 413 1,24 510.80 445
Capital Irade payables EUR 30.00 o.00* 30.00 0.00*
Advance to supplier - Capital gonds uso - - 1,200.00 0.08

*represents amount less than 10,000

Mote 38 Segment reporting

a) The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of zlcohalic beverages (wines and spirits). The Fracutive Committes of the
Company (heing the Chief Operating Decision Maker) assesses performance and allocalas resources lor lhe business of the Company as & whola and hence
the managemen! considers Company’s business aclivilies as a single operaling scgment (viz. Beverage alcohal).

b} Tha geographical segments have been considered for disclosure as the secondary segment, under which the domestic segment inclides sales to
cuslomers lecated in India and overseas segment includes sales 1o customer located owside India,

The fallowing informalion discloses exlernal revenues and non-current assels based on Lhe physical lecation of the custemers.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
India Outside India India Oulside India
Revenue [ram operali 456,79 - 41715 16.10
Mor-curizinl assets 217.35 - H5EGT -




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounling policies and other explanalory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 51 March 2023
(Amount in £ millicn, unless otherwise stated)

Mele 38 Government grants

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The disclosures pursuant 1o Ind AS 20 "Acoounting lor Governmant Grant and Disclnsure of Governmen! Assistance” are as fallows'

ovormment Grands at the baginning of he yoear

Add: Covernment grant aceread dunng lhe period

Less: Governmeant Granl received during the pe

riod

Add: Imerest on linancsl sssels carried at amotisad cosl

Gowvarnment Grants at the end of e period

Classification between current and non-current:

Ceurrenl
MNarn-currant

09.92 -
15.59 9492
010 2
25.61 9.892
14.43 578
11.18 1.14

Governmenl granls refale lo Wing Incantive Pramation Subsidy (WIFS) scheme launched by the slale of Maharashiza. Under the WIPS scheme, Valus Added Tax (VAT)
paid by Gompany on wing manufactured from grapes produced including with wine manufaclured from grapes produced within slale of Maharzzhira and subsequenly
sold in Maharashira is eligible for f0% refund. The Company being invalved in he business of wine manufacturing, avads WIPS incentive. There are ra wniullilled
cendilions or contingencies attachad Lo lhese grands.

Hate 40 Disclosure of ratics

f

Farmula for computation Maasura As atand for the  As atand for the
Particulars {Ir times/ year ended year ended
percentage) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a Current Ratio Current assets { Curcent labilitics Times 304 325
b Debl Equity Ratio Drzbd f Mt worth Times 1216 569
¢ Deht Service coverage Ralio ERITA (Finance cosls + Frincipal repayment of long tarm Times .
barrowings within one year) 0226 1.27
o Redwrn on Lguily (LossMProlil aller fax / Average shareholder's fund Percantage 127 55% 29 O
& Inventory Turmover Ratio Cost of goods sald / Average inveniony Times 2832 273
Trade receivable turnover rafio Revanue from zale of praduct and services { Average gross Tlrnes
frada receivabias 306 2140
g Trade Payahle wrnover ratio Purchases / Average Irade payablos lirnis 746 281
h Mel Capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations f working capilal Times @41 172
Me Prafil Ralio {Less)Profil afler tax { Revenues from operalions Percentzge -3.21% B
Return on Capilal Lmployed (ROGE) EBIT / Capital empluyed Percantage 0.714% 11.74%
k Raturn on Investment (RO Mot Applicahle M.A MNLA M.A

L=n: 1}

L= R = T =

Notas:

1 Debt = Mon-current borrowings + Current borrowings

2 Mat worth = Prid-up share capital 1 Hoescrves

created out of prafit - Accumulaled losses

4 EBIDTA = Earnings before finance costs, deprecialion and amortisation and tax expenses,

4 Coslof goods seld = Cosl of materials consumed + Purchase of sleck-in-Irade + Changas in invenlorics of finished goods, stock-in-rads and work-in-progress

fi Met purchase = Purchase of slock-in-rade + Cost of materals consumed + Glosing inventary of raw malerals and packing materials - Opening invenlory of raw

materfals and packing malerials

i Warking Capital = Current assels - Curront Eabilities

T EBIT = Earnings before finance costs and lax

CxpOnEas.

& Capilal employed = Tofal equity + Mon-current borrowings
& Revenue from operations = Sales of products (including excise duly) ' Sales of sorvicas+0ther aperaling incoeme

Explanalion for variance in ratio by more than 25%

Particulars

% Variance in ratio between
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Raason for Varlance in excess of 25%

Currani Ratio
Dbl Eguity Ralio

Dabt Service coverage Ratio
Heturn on Lguily

Ivventony Turmaovers Fatio
Trade recelable Wwmover ralic
Trade Payable fumover ratio
Ml Capital turnover ratio

Met Prafit Ralio

Rezlurn on Capilal Employed (ROCE)

Mote: Since the changs in ralio is less than 26%

0%
114%

-TO%
-65T%
]
AG%
%
40%
-335%

-106%

L e explanalion is required 1o be disclogg

Refer note below

Owing to decrease in Mel worlh as a result of loss
increased during e yoar.

Owing lo decrease in EBIDTA in curment year,
Cwing 1o decreaze in profil in current year.

Reler nole balow
Drwing to decrease in average rade roceivables

Ciwang ko decrease in average rade payable
Owing o inereass in Revenue from operation

Owning to higher sedling and distibudion expense, olher
expenses and deprecialion and amerisation expense,

Owing lo decrease in_eamin
==

g5 hefore inleresl and L




Artisan Spirits Privafe Limited

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory infermation to the financial statements as al and for the year ended 31 March 2023
tAamount in F millicn, unless clhoerwise slated)

Mote 41 Leases - Ind AS 116

1. Right-of-use Assets:

The net carnying value of right-of-use assels o5 al 31 March 2023 amounts fo ¥ 3.50 million (31 March 2022 : 2 1.28 million] have been disclosed an the face of the
balance sheet (Also refar note 34)

Lease llabilities:

As at 31 March 2023, the obBgations under linance leases amounts t ¥ 366 million (31 March 2022 : T 1.33 milion) which have been classilied 1o lesse liabilites,
wngder financial llahilties. (Also refer note 16)

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Leaze liahilities 1.M 0.B1
Mon-Currant | ease liabilities 1.95 0.52
Total Lease liabilitics 3.66 1.33
(i3 Thez Tallowingg is the movement in lezse liabifliies for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2032
A oat As at
31 March 2023 M March 2022
Opening Balance 1.23 =
Additions during the period 3.47 1.74
Finanee rost accred during the pericd 0,25 0.0
FPaymenl of lease labilities (1.39) (01,501
3.68 1.33

Closing Balance

(i) The table below provides details regarding the contracheal maturities of lease liabillices:

Contractual cash flows

Lease Llabllitles
Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-Gyears |5 ysars and above |
31 March 2023 3.66 4.04 1.97 207 -
31 March 2022 1.33 146 | 0.66 0.80

2, The Company recognised the following in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Yaar endad Year cnded
Farticulars
31 March 2023 31 hanch 2022
Deprecialion expenzes on right-of-use assels (Roler nole 30 and 249) 1.26 .45
Finance coslon lease labilities (Refer note 28) 0.25 0.049
h.h8 GAT

Rent expanse parlaining 1o leases with less than twelve months of leass included under rent expenses (Refer Nole #7)

Note 42 Busineas Combination

a. Summary of acquisition

The Company w.e.f. 1 August 2021 has acquired the business operations of Yaork Winary Privale Limiled ("YWPL), legether with all the brands, infrastructures in relation Lo
lhe winery and as a going cencern on a shemp sale basis for 2 1otal consideration of T 17165 million.

YWPL iz engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of domestic wines from ils winery in Nasik, Indiz. |t alzo has small set up for lasling room and reslavcant within
winery. The acquizilion will ielp he Company in expanding the markat share in Maharashira and other states, The wine fourizm st the winery will halp in creating awareness
abaut the wing which will in lurn boosl the growth in the wine market. The delails of nel assels acguired and purchase consideration are as follows.

As on the date of

Particulars it
acquisition

Propary plant and equipment 74.65
Inventories 36,83
L oans and advance AT
Trade recevables 037
Cash and cash equivalents 013
Brand 5030
Trade payablos {1G.00)
Othear current Babilitios (h.72)
Net identifiable assets at fair value B ) 163.22
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Refer nota 4) 843
Purchase consideration payable 171.65
Cash flow on acquisition

161.65

Purchase considaration paidiadjusicd (Reler nols beloe)

- Pursuant to business lansfer agreement, deferred considaration of T 10 million was Lo be payable after realisation of certain assets acquired. During the currenl year 8.5
millign were paidizdjusled against e saxd deferred considaration.

- There were na conlingent consideration arrangement invalved in relalion 1o above acquisition.

- The fransaclion did nol involve any inherance of contingant Eakility.

- This acguisiion gave ise 1o goodwill amounting Lo T 5.43 million, heing excess of consideration amount over fair value of assels under acguisition, The said goodwill being
capilzl in the nature is net eligible o be deductad for fax purposcs.

- During tha curranl year company has paid 210 million and adjusted T 6.3% million agains oulstanding purchase consideration to York Winery Privaie Limiled.
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Artisan Spirits Privata Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and othar explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year anded 31 March 2023
{Arnount in F millicn, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43: Additional regulatory information required under Schedule 11
(i) The Campany does not have any Benami propany, whare any procesding have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(i} The Campany does not have any ransactions with companias struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companes Acl, 1956,

(i} The Company does nat have any charges or satisfaction which is yat to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the stabutory period,
(v} Tha Company has not fraded or investad in Cryplo currency or Virueal Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any olher person{s) or entily(ies), including foreign entiies (Intermodiaries} wilh the endersianding lhat
tha Intermediary shall:

a. direcily or indirecily lend or invest in othar persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiarias) or;

b. provide any guaranbco, soourily or the Bke Lo or on behall of the Uliimate Benoliciarios

(vi} The Company have nol received any lund lrom any peesonis) or enbily(ies), including loreign enlifics (Funding Parly} with the understanding (whelbes recarded in
writing or otherwiza) that The Company shall:

. diresly o indivecily lend or investin olher persons or enlilbes identificd in any mannen whalsoever by on on bebsall of e Funding Parly (Ulimate Banelicianies) or

b, prrovide any guarantee, securily or the ke on bebhall of e Ullimatle Beneficsnes, :

(i) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in (he books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclogsed as income during the year in
ther lax assessments vnder e Ineome Tox Acl 1967 (such as, search oF survey o any olies relevant provisions of e ncemes Tax Acl, 1961)

(i) The Company has not been declarsd wilful defauler by any bank or financial institoticn oF govermmesn of any qovernmesnt aulbarity.

(ix) The Company has complied wilh the nember of layess prescribed onder e Companies Scl 2013

() The l§3l::'|:I'||.IEII'Ifu' hag nol enterad inlo @y scheame of arrangament which has an accounbing mmpacl on the cunrenl or pravious finzncizl ear

This iz & summary of significant accounling
policies and other explanatory information
referred o inoour report of even date

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
Artisan Spirits Private Limited
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